

An agency of the Government of Ontario



Un organisme du gouvernement de l'Ontario

This document was retrieved from the Ontario Heritage Act Register, which is accessible through the website of the Ontario Heritage Trust at **www.heritagetrust.on.ca**.

Ce document est tiré du registre aux fins de la *Loi sur le patrimoine de l'Ontario,* accessible à partir du site Web de la Fiducie du patrimoine ontarien sur **www.heritagetrust.on.ca**.



March 23, 2004



BEÇU/BECEIVED 2 5 -03- 2004

Dear Sirs:

Re: By-law 2002-7 - Heritage Designation <u>The Peter Rumohr House – 10271 Woodbine Avenue</u>

This will advise that Council at its meeting held on <u>January 15, 2002</u>, passed Bylaw 2002-7, which designated The Peter Rumohr House, 10271 Woodbine Avenue, as being of historic and/or architectural value or interest.

The reason for the delay in the registration of this by-law was the requirement that a plan of subdivision must be approved for the immediate area that would establish the correct property description for the heritage property. This has now been finalized, and a copy of the by-law with the pertinent registration data is attached for your information.

If you should have any questions, please contact Mr. Regan Hutcheson, Manager, Heritage Planning at 905-477-7000, Ext. 2080.

Sincerely,

J. Burel

Sheila Birrell Town Clerk

Encls.

c: Ontario Heritage Foundation Mr. R. Hutcheson, Manager, Heritage Planning

11/04/04 V

CERTIFIED A TRUE COPY "Sheila Birrell" c/s SHEILA BIRRELL, TOWN CLERK THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF MARKHAM



## 2002-7

A by-law to designate a certain property as being of Historic and/or Architectural Value or Interest The Peter Rumohr House

WHEREAS Pursuant to Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act, the council of a municipality is authorized to enact by-laws to designate a real property, including all the buildings and structures thereon, to be of historic and/or architectural value or interest;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Markham has caused to be served on the owners of the lands and premises at:



and upon the Ontario Heritage Foundation, notice of intention to designate The Peter Rumohr House, located at 10271 Woodbine Avenue, Markham, having a general circulation in the municipality;

AND WHEREAS the reasons for designation are set out in Schedule "B" attached hereto and forming part of this by-law;

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF MARKHAM HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. THAT the following real property, more particularly described in Schedule "A" attached hereto and forming part of this by-law is hereby designated as being of historic and/or architectural value or interest:

The Peter Rumohr House 10271 Woodbine Avenue Town of Markham The Regional Municipality of York

ì

2. THAT the Town Solicitor is hereby authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be registered against the property described in Schedule "A" attached hereto in the property Land Registry Office.

READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS 15<sup>TH</sup> DAY OF JANUARY, 2002.

"Sheila Birrell"

"Don Cousens"

SHEILA BIRRELL, TOWN CLERK

DON COUSENS, MAYOR

By-law 2002-7 Page 2

۱. r

.

# SCHEDULE 'A' TO BY-LAW 2002-7

In the Town of Markham in the Regional Municipality of York, property description as follows:

PT. LOT 22 AND PT. LOT 23, CON. 4, MARKHAM TOWN OF MARKHAM REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK

٦

\$

By-law 2002-7 Page 3

## SCHEDULE 'B' TO BY-LAW 2002-7

## STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR DESIGNATION

#### Historical Background

Construction of the Peter Rumohr Jr. House is believed to have been begun c.1855 by Peter Rumohr Jr., a Great Grandson of Marcus Rumohr (1742-1817) who along with his wife Maria were among the setters who accompanied William Berczy to Markham in 1794

The property at Lot 22, Concession 4 was first farmed by John William Neuschultz, who was himself a Berczy settler, first arriving in Markham at the age of 18 in 1794. He was allocated land on Lot 22, Concession 4 where he cleared the land and established a farmstead. In 1808 he received the patent to the land from the Crown. His name appears on a militia list of 1800 and on a subscription list for St. Philip's Lutheran Church dated 1820.

Neuschultz did not stay long on the land after receiving the patent as by 1811 he had sold the entire 200 acres. In 1808 the west half of the property was sold to John Nigh. John Nigh is believed to have been a Presbyterian of Scottish origin. In 1812 John Nigh is listed in the roll call of Captain Arnold's company of the first York Regiment, which did a tour of duty at Fort York in October 1812, during the War of 1812.

John Nigh evidently farmed his 100-acre parcel for approximately 20 years before selling off 75 acres to Peter Rumohr in 1830. In 1841 a further 12 ½ acres were sold in the northwest corner of the property to Thomas Read. This parcel was located just north of the subject dwelling. Remnants of a stone foundation in this area are believed to be the house built on the Thomas Read property.

Peter Rumohr was the grandson of Marcus Rumohr (1742-1817) who along with his wife Maria was among the setters who accompanied William Berczy to Markham in 1794. According to historical records Peter Rumohr (born 1798) was residing on the property as a farmer in a frame house from the 1830s onwards. He lived there with his wife Pleasant, aged 44 who was of English origin, and their children, David, John, Peter, Mary, Rachel and Hannah.

By the time of the 1861 Census, Peter Rumohr Jr., then aged 27, was living in a house of his own on the property with his wife Matilda and children Mary, Malcolm and Charles. It is believed that this house is the house which stands on the property at 10271 Woodbine Avenue today. This mid-19<sup>th</sup> Century date of construction is verified by the presence of early rough-hewn beams and wide boards in the basement.

By 1860 the Thomas Read parcel to the north of the subject dwelling was acquired by a Joseph Ellarby. In the 1851 Census, Ellarby is listed as a storekeeper residing on the property with his family, possibly as a tenant on the Thomas Read property (Read is known to have lived elsewhere in the Victoria Square area). By the time of the 1861 census, Ellarby was not residing on Lot 22, Concession 4; however, by 1871 he had returned and was listed under profession as a farmer. In 1866 Ellarby acquired a further 38 acres of the Rumohr holdings on the west half of Lot 22, Concession 4.

By the time of the 1871 Census it is believed that Ellarby was residing in the Peter Rumohr Jr. house, while his earlier, smaller house to the north was rented out to tenants. It is believed that at this point in the history of the house the Ellarby's carried out modifications to the structure, possibly adding a second storey. This is believed to have resulted in the house achieving its current form. (The house would have been a wood or stucco clad house at this point. The present concrete bricks were believed to have been added in the mid-20<sup>th</sup> Century.)

By-law 2002-7 Page 4

...

In 1885, Joseph Ellarby sold part of his acreage on the West ½ to Joseph Perkins. Perkins was a schoolteacher by profession who taught in Schoolhouse #6, located on Woodbine Avenue, immediately south of the house. It is believed that Perkins lived on the property to the north of the house however, as the Ellarby family were residing on the property at the time of the 1892 Directory.

In 1903 Joseph Ellarby sold the remainder of his holdings on the property to William F. Nichols for \$5600. It is believed that Nichols, who was residing in the former Wonch House to the south, had purchased the property as a farm for his second son R.W. Nichols. By the time of the 1918 Map of Markham Township, R.W. Nichols is listed as residing on the property.

### Architectural Background

The Peter Rumohr Jr. House is an example of a simple vernacular farmhouse, which has evolved over the years. Construction of the house is believed to have begun in the 1850s and by the 1870s modifications are believed to have been carried out on the house, which resulted in it achieving its current form. The house is a frame house that was originally clad in either wood or stucco. At some point in the mid-20<sup>th</sup> Century, concrete bricks were applied to the exterior of the house.

The Peter Rumohr Jr. House is  $1\frac{1}{2}$  storeys in height, with a symmetrical 3-bay façade. The house is built in the shape of a T with a perpendicular wing to the rear.

The windows on the house are square headed, double hung with a 2/2 pane division. New brick sills have been inserted below the windows. The original windowsills would have been wood. Based on historic architectural precedents in the area, there is a strong probability that the original siding on the house was roughcast stucco. This was most likely modified to wood siding, possibly vertical v-groove during the renovation in the 1870s.

The house likely originally had chimneys on all 3 gables; the rear, internal chimney is the last remnant of this.

Presently the house has a small, c.1920s front porch. It is believed that the house may have originally had a full width veranda. The south side of the house has a veranda with chamfered posts. It is believed that this was reconstructed after the concrete bricks were applied.

Although the house has been significantly modified with the addition of concrete bricks, this is a cosmetic alteration only and it is believed that much of the fabric of the house, at least to the 1870s period remains on site and could be revealed through removal of the bricks.

### Contextual Background

The Peter Rumohr Jr. house is visible from Woodbine Avenue, overlooking the valley of the Carlton Creek and is an important reminder of the historic agricultural tradition in the area. The house forms part of the greater community of Victoria Square and is one of the last remnants of a cluster of rural farmhouses that once existed in this area.

To the rear of the property there exists a large gambrel barn from the late 19<sup>th</sup> or early 20<sup>th</sup> Century.

To the north of the house are remnants of the foundation of a former dwelling, which are believed to have been the house identified on the 1853-54 Map of Markham, on the Thomas Read property.